
This document represents the official meeting record of the January 28, 2015, Portland 
Development Commission (PDC) Board of Commissioners (Board) Budget Work Session held 
at 222 NW Fifth Ave., Portland, OR  97209.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation is 
included in these minutes as Attachment 1. 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
Chair Tom Kelly called the meeting to order at approximately 1:09 p.m.  Ms. Gina Wiedrick, 
PDC Board recording secretary, called the PDC Board roll: 
 
Chair Tom Kelly PRESENT 
Commissioner Aneshka Dickson PRESENT 
Commissioner Mark Edlen PRESENT 
Commissioner John Mohlis ABSENT  
Commissioner Charles Wilhoite ABSENT 
 
2. Review Agenda 
 
Executive Director Patrick Quinton gave a brief overview and reminded the PDC Board that 
this is a public meeting, but also a work session and questions and comments are welcomed 
at any time. 
 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 and Draft FY 2015-16 work plans were handed out and are included 
in these minutes as Attachment 2. 
 
3. Budget Calendar and Overview 
 
Tony Barnes, Budget Officer, gave an overview of where PDC is in the FY 2015-16 budget 
process and upcoming dates of interest, making note of the presentations to Portland City 
Council (City Council) in April and May. 
 
Commissioner Edlen asked if between now and June there will be opportunities for the 
public to provide input.  Mr. Barnes responded yes, at the April 8 PDC Board meeting, at City 
Council in May, the June 10 PDC Board meeting, and the June 26 PDC Board meeting 
wherein the Tax Supervising & Conservation Commission will review and certify the final 
budget before the PDC Board takes action. 
 
Commissioner Dickson asked if the public knows about opportunities to weigh in at the 
Neighborhood Economic Development (NED) Leadership Group meetings.  Justin Douglas, 
Policy Manager, responded that all of the NED Leadership Group meetings are posted in The 
Oregonian and electronic news blasts are also sent out. 
 
4. Financial and Staffing Summaries 
 
At approximately 1:25 p.m. Commissioner Wilhoite joined the meeting. 
 
Mr. Barnes gave an overview of the budget trends. 
  

Tom Kelly
Chair

Aneshka Dickson
Commissioner

Mark Edlen
Commissioner

John C. Mohlis
Commissioner

Charles A. Wilhoite
Commissioner

Charlie Hales
Mayor

Patrick Quinton
Executive Director

222 NW Fifth Avenue
Portland, OR 
97209-3859

503-823-3200 Main
503-823-3368 Fax
503-823-3366 TTY



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 – Page 2 of 5 

 
 

Commissioner Edlen asked what the historical accuracy of predicting resources is.  Mr. Barnes 
responded that the numbers for tax increment financing (TIF) are very close; PDC staff is very 
conservative with these numbers. 
 
Commissioner Wilhoite asked the following questions: 

How does PDC reconcile over time that if it says that it has over 30 percent for housing set-aside 
planned yet the communities say that there is a shortage of affordable housing.  Executive 
Director Quinton responded that the City of Portland (City) as a whole needs to own it; TIF is just 
one tool that is effective in one part of the market. 
What if more than 30 percent is needed?  Executive Director Quinton responded that it will be 
an active conversation, but there are a lot of competing priorities.  While there is a desire to 
address affordable housing, there is an interest to complete other projects as well. 
So PDC does need to build a case for the prioritization of projects.  Executive Director Quinton 
responded that this work session is the place for that discussion; PDC staff will work with 
whatever direction the PDC Board provides. 

 
James Carter, Sr. Financial Analyst, City Budget Office, stated that there will also be revenue from the 
Neighborhood Prosperity Initiative that will show up.  Mr. Barnes added that PDC staff is working with 
the City’s Office of Management and Finance (OMF) on what that number will look like. 
 
Goal 3: Healthy, Complete Neighborhoods 
 
Lisa Abuaf, Central City Manager, gave an overview of the $83,600,000 budget and Bruce Wood, Real 
Estate & Construction Manager, gave an update on the projects, noting that some dollars will be spent 
from the FY 2014-15 budget and project balances will roll over to the FY 2015-16 budget. 
 
Commissioner Wilhoite asked the following questions: 

What will happen with the Veterans Memorial Coliseum (Coliseum)?  Ms. Abuaf responded that 
PDC has invested $1,500,000 so far.  Executive Director Quinton added that PDC paid for the 
work on the ice floor.  Ms. Abuaf continued that there is not an active agreement on the 
Coliseum. 
Commissioner Wilhoite commented that the City does own it and therefore must maintain it.  
Executive Director Quinton responded that the Coliseum does need on-going investment and 
OMF wants to take the time to figure what the best options are. 
Does the ownership of the Coliseum lose money in operating costs?  Executive Director Quinton 
responded that it is sometimes in the black, sometimes in the red, but not too much on one or 
the other. 
What do the Portland Winterhawks think of the Coliseum versus the Moda Center?  Executive 
Director Quinton responded that the Winterhawks do like the Coliseum and the flexibility it 
gives them of making their own schedule. 

 
Executive Director Quinton stated that the allocation for affordable housing has already been 
determined, but PHB is struggling to spend those dollars in the Oregon Convention Center URA.  He 
added that because of the $20,000,000 allocation to the Coliseum and the Convention Center Hotel, 
there is very little money left over for any other projects. 
 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 – Page 3 of 5 

 
 

Commissioner Dickson asked how PDC would determine where to allocate dollars should it be decided 
to release the hold on some of the large projects.  Executive Director Quinton responded that it is a 
question that is often asked.  Should PDC release the money held, it would open up the floodgates with 
requests for other projects.  The PDC Board could provide direction on how they would like PDC staff to 
reallocate these dollars. 

Goal 1: Access to High Quality Employment 

Chris Harder, Economic Development Manager, gave an overview of the $10,100,000 budget and its 
focus on job creation.  Kate Deane, Community Economic Development Manager, focused her 
comments on the work of preparing people for employment. 
 
At approximately 3:05 p.m. Commissioner Dickson excused herself from the PDC Board meeting. 
 
Commissioner Edlen asked about the metrics for the workforce development programs.  Ms. Deane 
responded that there has not been much data on the back-end, but PDC staff and its partners just 
redesigned the system but are not far enough along to look at the metrics.  Tracking is being done by 
individual, but there is not good data on how long they have been employed. 
 
Goal 2: Equitable Wealth Creation 
 
Mr. Harder gave an overview of the $5,600,000 budget.  Executive Director Quinton stated that the 
$750,000 Inclusive Entrepreneurship Fund is a one-time ask, separate from PDC’s regular budget 
request. 
 
Chair Kelly asked if PDC was asked to submit a request, or if it initiated this on its own.  Executive 
Director Quinton responded that Mayor Hales asked PDC to submit the request. 
 
Chair Kelly asked if there are any metrics for the Portland Seed Fund.  Mr. Harder responded that with 
the Portland Seed Fund, PDC staff is looking at what new jobs are being created, and Portland Economic 
Investment Corporation tracks the return on investment. 
 
Ms. Deane also gave an overview of the business lending, business development, and small and micro 
business technical assistance in the neighborhoods. 
 
Goal 4: 21st Century Civic Networks, Institutions, and Partnerships 
 
Ms. Deane gave an overview of the $4,600,000 budget, which includes the Neighborhood Prosperity 
Initiative program. 
 
8. Stakeholder Testimony 
 
Chair Kelly called forward guests to testify. 
 
Sarah Stevenson, Executive Director at Innovative Housing, Inc., and a member of the Central City 
Budget Advisory Committee (Central City BAC).  Ms. Stevenson gave an overview of the requests made 
in the letter dated January 23, 2015, from the Central City BAC. 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 – Page 4 of 5 

 
 

Damien Hall, Associate at Ball Janik LLP, and a member of the Central City BAC.  Mr. Hall gave additional 
overview of the requests of the letter from the Central BAC, focusing on the legacy projects and 
recommendations on how these funds could be better spent. 

Gwen Baldwin, representing the Lloyd EcoDistrict.  Ms. Baldwin gave an overview of the letter included 
in these minutes as Attachment 3. 

At approximately 3:43 p.m. Chair Kelly called for a break.  At approximately 3:57 p.m. Chair Kelly called 
the meeting to order. 
 
Chair Kelly called forward a guest to testify. 
 
Brian Alfano, Vice President of Member Services at Unitus Community Credit Union, and chair of the 
NED Leadership Group Budget Sub-Committee (Sub-Committee).  Mr. Alfano gave an overview of the 
requests made in the later dated January 23, 2015 from the Sub-Committee. 

Executive Director Quinton asked if there is anything in the Sub-Committee letter that the current 
budget is not addressing.  Ms. Deane responded that there are not any new projects, but there are two 
projects whose budgets need scrutiny: (1) the Lombard Investment Strategy, there is a concern that the 
budget may not be robust enough, but she does not recommend making changes to the budget at this 
time because the proposal will not be completed in the FY 2015-16; and (2) for the Halsey/Weidler 
Streetscape PDC staff may need to adjust allocations in a future budget revision. 
 
Goal 5: Equitable, Innovative, and Financially Sustainable Operations 
 
A general overview of the $16,000,000 budget can be seen on the last slide; most of the discussion took 
place in the next section. 
 
9. Administrative Overhead 
 
Asset & TIF Revenue Based Allocation (weighted) document was handed out and are included in these 
minutes as Attachment 4. 
 
Commissioner Edlen requested a chart showing the percentages spent year-to-date, and asked the 
following questions: 

How frequently are the detailed reports run?  Faye Brown, Chief Financial Officer, responded 
that reports are run on a quarterly basis.  Executive Director Quinton responded that the 
Leadership Team reviews these extensively and they are shared with the PDC Board on an 
annual basis, but PDC staff could provide more regular briefings to the PDC Board. 
Does the PDC Board have fiduciary responsibility over the entire budget?  Executive Director 
Quinton responded that the PDC Board’s role is to make sure that the funds are being used 
legally.  Eric Iverson, Legal General Counsel, added that the PDC Board’s responsibility is in good 
faith; the real legal requirement is that if any member of the PDC Board knows there is a legal 
prohibition and still choses to proceed, then that is a problem. 
Expressed specific concern over the ramifications from a budget perspective.  Mr. Iverson 
responded that the PDC Board is relying on the information that it is given by PDC staff, and can 
ask for additional information at any time. 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 – Page 5 of 5 

 
 

Commissioner Wilhoite asked what the term of PDC’s lease is for its current headquarters.  Executive 
Director Quinton responded that PDC has the right to opt out in 2017; PDC staff is actively looking to put 
PDC in a position to where it can change locations more easily if there was a want or need to do so. 
 
Executive Director Quinton stated that PDC has made painful strides to reach its current staffing level, 
but the forecast shows that overhead continues to grow year after year; PDC staff needs to figure out 
what to do for the future.  Ninety-five is the target employee count, and there is no intention to go over 
that number, but it has been lower than that for the past one to two years due to vacancies. 
 
Commissioner Edlen requested that PDC staff continue to provide updates to the PDC Board with 
regards to the Centennial Mills project. 
 
Executive Director Quinton stated that PDC does lose credibility if it does not put money aside to cover 
what it thinks its obligations might be, noting that it also does not have the obligation to spend the 
money merely because it was budgeted; the five-year forecast gives the public a sense of security, 
showing what could be available, but PDC staff can move money around from year-to-year as it 
develops the annual budget. 
 
Commissioner Wilhoite asked if PDC feels good about the advisory committees and its work.  Executive 
Director Quinton responded that there are still a few people in the public who still yearn for the days of 
the URA Advisory Committees, but PDC does not have the capacity to turn back to that model.  The 
advisory committees have been providing substantive feedback and it works.  Kimberly Branam, Deputy 
Director, added that the community members and PDC staff find the meetings and interactions to be 
very productive. 
 
Commissioner Wilhoite asked how many sessions will the PDC Board have regarding the budget.  Mr. 
Barnes responded that PDC staff will come back to the PDC Board in April, after the City Council work 
session takes place, and back to the PDC Board in June after City Council has its meetings in May.  
Executive Director Quinton added that PDC staff can provide updates in all upcoming PDC Board 
meetings; from now through April is when the PDC Board has the most flexibility in providing feedback, 
guidance, and input, but starting in May, PDC staff has to follow what has been submitted in final form 
to City Council. 
 
11. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business, Chair Kelly adjourned the meeting at approximately 4:45 p.m. 

Approved by the Portland Development Commission on 
 

 
      
Gina Wiedrick, Recording Secretary 

April 8, 2015



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 1 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 2 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 3 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 4 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 5 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 6 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 7 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 8 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 9 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 10 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 11 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 12 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 13 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 14 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 15 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 16 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 17 of 18 

 
 



  Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 1 – Page 18 of 18 

 
 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 1 of 10 

 
 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 2 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 3 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 4 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 5 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 6 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 7 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 8 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 9 of 10 

 
 

 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 2 – Page 10 of 10 

 
 



Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 28, 2015 
 Attachment 3 – Page 1 of 1 

 
 

 


